Final
CORTLANDVILLE TOWN BOARD

AGENDA
OCTOBER 02, 2019 - 5:00 P.M.

Pledge Allegiance to the Flag

PUBLIC HEARING: 1.) Local Law amending the Town Zoning
Code Chapter 178, Article XVIII, Section
178-112 to permit illuminated signs on
properties which are classified as:

1.) Business Use for freestanding signs
2.) Professional offices
3.) Recreational and Social activities

4.) Religious Institutions

a.) Open the Public Hearing

b.)  Town Clerk to read Legal Notice
c.) Privilege of the Floor

d.) Close the Public Hearing

A. CALL THE REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER

B. APPROVE MINUTES
B-1  Town Board Minutes of September 4, 2019

B-2 Town Board Minutes of August 30, 2019

B-3 Receive & file the Cortlandville Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes of
August 27, 2019

B-4 Receive & file the Cortlandville Planning Board Minutes of August 27,
2019

G. PURCHASE ORDERS
C-1  P.O. #0154, PMC Industries, Snow Rail Systems for the Water & Sewer
Garage in the amount of $4,942.55
D. AUTHORIZATION TO PAY THE BILLS

E. PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR



REPORTS
F-1  Receive & file the Cortlandville Fire District 2020 Tentative Budget

F-2 Receive & file the Monthly Report of the Code Enforcement Office for
September 2019, submitted by CEO Kevin McMahon

COMMUNICATIONS
G-1 Receive & file correspondence dated September 30, 2019 from Charter
Communication regarding programming

OLD BUSINESS
H-1 Local Law amending the Town Zoning Code Chapter 178, Article XVIII,
Section 178-112 to permit illuminated signs on properties listed above

NEW BUSINESS
-1 Town Clerk

I-2  Town Attorney

-3 Grants:
a.) Receive & file the fully executed original Grant Disbursement
Agreement from DASNY regarding the Gutchess Lumber Sports
Complex

I-4 Receive & file the Notice of Order from NYS DOT regarding the 45 MPH
speed limit on Pendleton from Saunders Road to Ahrens Road

I-5  Authorization to Amend the 2019 Budget as listed:
a.) Amend GFB in the amount of $2,042.23
b.) Transfer with within Highway Fund Part Town DB in the amount of
$52,987.00

I-6  Acknowledge receiving the Tentative 2020 Town Budget

I-7 Receive & file the Aquifer Protection Application of McLean Solar | LLC &
forward to the Town & County Planning Boards for their review &
recommendations, also request that the Town Planning Board be Lead
Agency

ADJOURN




TOWN OF CORTLANDVILLE

LEGAL NOTICE

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a Public Hearing will be held by the Town Board of the Town of
Cortlandville on October 2, 2019 at 5:00 p.m. at the Raymond G. Thorpe Municipal Building, 3577
Terrace Road, Cortland, New York 13045, concerning the enactment of a Local Law amending
Chapter 178, Article XVII, Section 178-112 the Zoning Code of the Town of Cortlandville to
permit illuminated signs on properties which are classified as: 1. Business uses for freestanding
signs; 2. Professional offices; 3. Recreational and social activities, and 4. Religious institutions.

The text of the proposed Local Law is available for examination at the office of the Town Clerk and
is also available online at https://www.cortlandville.org.

At said hearing, all persons wishing to comment on the proposed Local Law shall be given the
opportunity to be heard,

By order of the Town Board of the Town of Cortlandville.
Dated: September 16, 2019
Kristin Rocco-Petrella, RMC

Town Clerk/Tax Collector
Town of Cortlandville




g0 L ebeg AHITO NMO

i

aildinuded VY

D<Mm JOovHY3AL 248¢€
ALNNOO CNVT1LH0D
JTUAGNYT1LH0D 40 z%owvm__“_
NPT ST AR Pel
00°005'0E 00°005'0e 00°2y8'Ly G9'€l6'se ININLINDT - oooﬁ_um.v _.Amuo._.
000 000 JTOIHIA ANVININOD - 00EYZh
00°005‘L 00°09¢ 1NINLINDT ¥ILNINOD - 00802
00°000°0} 00°000°01 00°£0z2'9l 92'90Z'9l LNINLINO3 ¥3HLO - 00202
00°000'2 00°000'2 00°000‘2 000 3SOH 3Yid - 00902
00°000°8} 00°000'8L 00°6e9°'.L2 6E°LYP'CL AVIO FHId - 00502
000 000 AINININD3 SNOILYDINNININGD - 00402Zh
00°00S 00s 00°00S 000 LNINLINOT 32170d 3MId - 00202
LN3ININDT - 000021
00°000'tZ 00°080'ce 00°080'¢Z 00°080°'ce ZL°Ge8's| SIDINYES TYNOSHA - ccE'u 154 _ro._.
00700021 00°0vS'LL 00°0¥S‘LL 00°0¥S‘LL 9G°L16'L Kiejeg yayNSYINL - 0020L¥
00°000°2} 100075 LL 00°0¥S'L1 00°0%G L1 9G°LL6'L AAVIVS ANVLIYOTS - 00L0LY
SHOIAYSS TYNOS¥H3d - 000011
asuadxg
00" v¥¥'s¥8 00'056'218 00°056'228 00°056'v28 8Z'eve'zen’l Jjold ssoun
00°056'¥28 82'eve'Ze0L awoau| |ejo)
00°056'728 8T’ere'zeo’lL S82INn0s || - INNIATIY |ejoL
00°000°22 00°000°22 00°000°22 00°000'.¢ 00°000'/¢ uojos jo umo] - 008z¢
00°00Z'% 00°002'% 00002y 00°002'¥ L1°508'se FINOONI SNOANVTIIDSIN - 002228
00°299'99} JINOJNI LNV - 005228
000 0 00°000°0} 00°000°z} 00°0l0'2Z INIINDINDI 40 VS - 009928
00°000°L 00°000°} 00°000°} 00°000°} Ly JINOJNI LSTYFLNI - 000728
00°v¥e'cls 00052082 00°05.'082 00°052'082 00°052'08Z SIAXVL ALYIJO¥d TvaH - 00L0LE
$824n0s |IY - INNIATY
JALLVINAL | Z 1dv¥a EELL[ | [owoouy
" 6i0C/LLi6 6L02/61/8 6102/L/8 139dng | | Ivnlov asuadxz/awoau| Areuipio
0zoz 0z0z 0zoz 6102 61 22Qq - uep

/

,

|

|

ARERY|

b

19900G PNAMING) -0k

BlOZ 6 d3S 03AI3I3Y! °

T4 ) 1A ENE 4297

il "




G jo Z obeg

000 0 000 00°000°0€ 00°000'0¢ S1OVHLNOD NOILO3LOYd T - oocavuw.v _Amuo._.
000 0 000 00°000'0€ 00°000°0¢ HINOH 40 IOVTIIA - oomomi

SLOVHLNOD NOLLOZLO¥M Tl - 000097

00°292'¢2 00 L9z'ce 00°26l'ze 00z6lze voove'ol SASNAJXT SUFLHDIHTNIL @ THAVHL - ooowmw __m«o._.
00005'C 00005 00°005° 00°005'¢ 9§ vy uopusiay @ JuswinIday - 00805
00'00¢ 00¢ 00°00e 00’00 00°001 Buiurel | slauolssImWog - 00505Y
00°008 00g 00°00S 00°00% 000 uonuaaald alld - 00¥0sy
00°000°8 00°000'8 00°626'9 00°526'9 000 Buiuresy seybyalld - 00205
00'Lob'y 00°/9V'y 00°29%'v1 00°L9%'p1 18'6%6' S[es|pl - SaduUaIjuoy - 00Z0SY
00'00§'.Z 00°005*2 00°008'L 00°00S'2L LZ°9v8'9 uonosdsu| [enuuy - 00L0SY

SASNAdXH SHALHDIITNIL 8 TIAVYL - 00005P

00°062'ce 00°0SZ'ee oo'ose'ee 00°0gZ'ee 46'89¢€'LT HALVAA ANV SALLITLLA - Qcoﬁ*w.vw __mwo‘_.
00'o0s'e 00°005°S 00°00s’e 00°008'¢ P Lp6'L TVYAOINZY HSWVAL - 000015
00'000'8 00°000‘8 00°000°8 00°000°8 16°€96'y HINOHJ3T3L - 00507V
000G} 00°0S4'L 00°084'} 00°08.°} §9'606 UIALVYM - 0020V
00°000'02 oo.ooo_om 00°000'02 00°000‘02 16°288'cL JHOIT ANV LV3H - 00LOVY

. U LVAA ANV SFLLITILLA - 0000PY

00'LL¥'0E 00°L1¥'0€ 00°0S€'LE 00°0%e’LE ¥e'Z8L'CC NOILLVHLSININGY - ocowm.v __wuo._.
-00°084 052 00°0SL 00°06. [V 1 72 FONVNILNIVIN LNIWJINDT 301440 - 0080¢Y
000002 00°000°L 00°000°2 00°000'2 ZhLLs'y S83DVV AL 8LANMILNI - 00L0EY
oo'ooe 0oe ‘ 00'00e 00'o0e 89°6¢ SADILON 40 NOLLVOITaNnd - 0090€Y
00°0SL 084 00°08. 007052 00'0o6Y S2Na NOLLVIOOSSY - 00¥0Ed
00°290'61 00°£90'61 0000002 00°000'02 6T'889'vl L1HOddNS FAVALLIOS W LNdINOD - 00€0EY
00°059 0495 00°08S 00°049S 66°0LE HJOV.LSOd - 00208y
00°000' 000002 00°000°2 007000'C 8Z'LE6') SASNAdXA ? $3ATddNS 01440 - 00L0EY

NOILVALSINIINGY - 0000EY

0z0¢ ozoz 0zoz 6102 61 93(Q - uep




G Jo ¢ ebed

|

00°000'/8 00°000'28 00°000'¢8 00°000'c8 LW202'vs WHVTY ONV LNIININDI Juid - 000081 230l
00°005'¥L 00°00S'¥1 00°00S'PL 00°005'vL ¥6'¥¥8'21 aoueuSjUtey snjeleddy YdAN - 00208%
00°000'%1 00°000'v} 00°000'%L 00°000'%L 00'%0L'2 SAMJdNS ? SHIVdIY LNANLINDI - 00408Y
00°000'LZ 0000012 00°000°2L 00°000'L} 80'9¥8'01 SONVNILNIVIW/ONILSAL dINDT VdAN - 00£08Y
00'00S'Z) 00'005'Z) 00°005'21 00°008'zL L6'V98'G 213 110 "13N4 13SJNA ‘ANITOSYD - 00208+
00°000'GZ 00°000°s2 00°000'6Z 00°000°6Z Zreve’le SHIVdIY SNLVAVddY - 00108% [el0L
00°000'52 gezes't 18410 - SHIVdAY SNLVHVYddY - 00108¥
b1°L8¢ nd aBpod 910z - 22108V
yo'llL Xy BlJOqn}y - SHIV4AY - 8¥108Y
zoery'L sAnoy 0002 - LYEL - SHIVAIY - LLOSY
69'188°L Snequasoy 2002 - LEEL - SHIVATY - LEL08Y
ayecl Jeulsjul Le6l - €2€L -~ SUIVAIY - £Z108Y
yi'i8 JBUWIBUY] 166 - 22El - SHUIVAAY - 22L08Y
10°L¥2'8 Jewssju] 9661 ~ LZ€L - SHIVAIY - 1Z1L0gh
009,98 Pi0d 6661 - ZLEL - SHIVAAY - ZLLO8Y
96°8eT 0S¥ P10d 0L0Z - L1EL - SHIVATY - L1108Y
68°€Ll’lL Aingsines 8661 - £0€L - SHIVATY - £OLOSY
SHIVdIY SNLVYVddY - 00108Y
IWNVIY ANV INIININDI Juid - 00008+
00°'€06'6Z1 00°€z8'0¢E} 00'€e8'vLl 00°€2Z8'vi1 85°102°201 SONIaTINg - oocn_u\..v _730._.
ov'6ee'sl Buipiing wing - 009021
00°000'6 00°000'6 00°000°0} 00°000°0} 578208 SL1OVHLINOOD IONVNILNIVIN 9014 - 0050.LY
00°000'62 00°000'6Z 00°000°sZ 00°000'62 £L99e'el TTOHLINOD 1S3d 2 ONINVITD - 00¥0LY
00°€40'2L 00'€0'2. 00°€.0'sS 00°€L0'5S Gg'€L0'sS SNOILYAONZY - 00€0.LY
00°005'¢ 00°005°¢ 00°005°¢ 00°00S'¢ GLo8v'e SHINddNS IONVNIALNIVIN - 00201
00°0€€'02 0o00se'ie 0005212 00°05Z°'te vl leo'el "LNIVIN ANV SHIVJdI™ ONIGTING - 0010V
SONIQTING - 0000.LY
020z 0zoz 0c0e 6102 61 99Q - uep




00°000'% 00°000'% 007000t 00°529'y 000 Jusweinay [es07 ' SAN - 000029

0000028 00°000'28 00°000'06 00'20%'68 00'851'68 IWVHOO0Ud SAUVAAY FDIAMES - 0000SS [el0L
00°000'08 00°000'08 00°000°88 00°20¥%'/8 00'8G1'28 uopnquiuog dyso - 002055
00°000'2 000002 00°000'C 00°000°2 00°000°2 uoneysIUIWPY Welbold - 001055

NYYDOMd SQUVYAY FDIANTS - 060055

00°625'62 00°5Z5'62 00°526°'1e 00°G2s'Le £8'E0'61 SHJIAYIS TYNLOVHLNOD - 00005 1ej0L
00°006'}L 00°005°L 00°005'L 00°005'L 00°0 I8N JUBLD) - 0080YS
00°00¢'g 00°00¢'s 00°00¢'6 00°00€'6 00°00¢'6 lo)pny juepusdapy| - 00S0YS
00'gee eTAA 00°52e 0062z 000 SUOLIILSNI T70d - 00£0YS
00°00G'ZL 00°00S‘21L 00°008°ZL 00°005°'Z1L £8'¢0L'8 NVIOISAHd INAWLIMYJEA - 0020vS
00°000'2 00°000'2 00°000'e 00°000'c 00°000°¢ SH34 AINMOLLY - 00L0¥S

SHOIANES TYNLOVYINOD - 0600¥S

000 0 000 000 00'0 AONIDNILNOD - 0000ES

00°000'}L 00°000'1L 00°000°L 00°000°1L 000 SYHIN MALHDIATHIS - 000025

00°285°801 00'880'9L 00°880°9. 00°198'GL ye'eyeeL JONVANSNI - 00006¥ [eIOL
00°000°€ 00°000'€ 007000’ 00°gLl'e 00'¢LL'2 8duRINsU| JOUBRY - 00506
00'¥6%' Ly 00°000°51 00°000'G1 00°000'G) 88°0EL 'L uonesuadwos) SIBNIOM - 00L06Y
00°886'05 00°885°0S 00°885'0S 00°885°05 90°.85°05 ALYIdO¥d ® ALINMIGYIT 2179Nd - 002061
00°005°2 00°005°2 00°005°L 00°005°2 0y2sL'y SSaWDIS R JUSPIOTY - 00L06Y

HONVENSNI - 00006

0202 0z0z 0z0z 6102 61 28Q - uep




S0 g abeq

000 0 00°2¥9'6e
00 v¥¥'sy8 00°056'218 00'80€'e8. 00°056'vz8 88'62£'095 asuadxy |ejo].
00°000°L2 000 SIUNoJ3dy o ang - 000SS. feJoL
0000022 000 ANGISH LININJINDIF OL 3NA - 00006.
SjUNo2dYy 0) 8nq - 000552
00°000°292 00000292 00°000°c9z 00°000°002 00°6.8'e8 sjuawied puog - 00000, (10,
00°005'6 00°005'6 00°000°01 1S=TINI DA79 N3Nd - 005062
00°000°1€ 00°000°LE 00°000°'1€ TVdIONINd 5079 NH¥Ng - 005082
00°005's 00°005‘s 00°000'9 1STHILNI Jenequesoy 610Z - 007052
00°000'2Z 000002z 00'000°22 TTVdIDNi¥d 49nequasoy 6102 - 0050v.
00°000°62 00°000°62 00°000'62 00°000'0¢ 000 1S3YILNI Jenequasoy gL0Z - 00¥0SL
00°000's9 00'000's9 00°000'59 00°000's9 000 IVdIONId 19nequasoy L0z - 00S0¥.
00°000's2 00°000'6Z 00°000'G2 00°000'0¢ 00'5.8'¢l Jsaloju) puog Bulpungsy 0102 - 00Z0¥.L
00°000°6. 00°000'6Z 00°000'6. 00°000'Z 00°000'S4 lediound puog Buipungay 01.0Z - 00L0¥Z
sjuswAed puog - 00000,
020z 0zoz 0202 6102 61 9°Q - uep




RECEIVED oct 01 2019

(-]

COMMUNICATIONS

September 30, 2019

Re: Charter Communications — Upcoming Changes

Dear Municipal Official:

Charter Communications, locally known as Spectrum, is notifying you that effective on or
around October 31, 2019, Disney Family Movies On Demand will cease transmission on
Spectrum channel 267 in the channel lineup serving your community. To view a current channel
lineup visit www.spectrum.com/channels.

If you have any questions about this change, please feel free to contact me at 585-340-8188 or
via email at lauren.kelly@charter.com.

Sincerely,

ﬁwf K&u()?

Lauren E. Kelly
Director, Government Affairs — Finger Lakes
Charter Communications

100 Town Centre Dr. Suite 100
Rochester, NY 14623



J
' RECEIVED SEP 75 2019

STATE OF NEW YORK — DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

TRAFFIC OPERATIONS BUREAU

NOTICE OF ORDER

STUDY NO.: 3180129
FILE: 11.06-Local
TROOP: C

THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION HAS FILED AN ORDER WITH THE SECRETARY OF STATE WHEREBY:

SECTION: 1111.06

OF THE DEPARTMENT'S REGULATION IS ADDED

SUBDIVISION: (ai)

PARAGRAPH: (1)

0 AMENDED to read as follows: [0 REPEALED

(1) 45 MPH on Pendleton Street Extension, from Saunders Road to Ahrens Road, a distance of 2675 feet.

The above order will be effective upon the installation, modification or removal of the necessary traffic control device(s) required
by and conforming to the State Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

7/11/2019

APPROVED BY. &% m&M

(DATE)

DESCRIPTION:

Regional Traffic Engineer

A (SIGNATURW (TITLE)

Order establishes a 45 MPH speed limit for the above described section of Pendleton Street Extension.

COUNTY: Cortland
OTHER RELATED ACTIONS

cc: O CIty
O VILLAGE
m}w%/ TOWN
COUNTY SUPT.

TE 3e (06/2015)

X NONE

SHERIFF
STATE POLICE
O PERMITTEE

LOCALITY: Town of Cortlandville
O

(Identify)

O POLICE DEPARTMENT
REGION 3 TRAFFIC ENGINEER
[J OTHER - Specify: -

Filed EW_SL%_V__(—-J— fe 2520l
TOWN OF CORTLANDVILLE

CORTLAND GOUNTY

3577 TERRACE ROAD

Kottt eSS Rt rown o

. N
E by & q VIR

¢eToun thahw
’ﬁuyudch:Y

-1- o
CORTLANDVILLE TOWN
CLERK'S CFFICE




STATE OF NEW YORK — DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
TRAFFIC OPERATIONS BUREAU

STUDY NO.::3180129

NOTICE OF ACTION TAKEN FILE: 11.06-Local
TROOP: C

BY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION ORDER
SECTION: 1111.06 SUBDIVISION: (ai) PARAGRAPH: (1)

OF THE DEPARTMENT'S REGULATION IS ADDED [J AMENDED to read as follows: [0 REPEALED

45 MPH on Pendleton Street Extension, from Saunders Road to Ahrens Road, a distance of 2675 feet.

This notice must be forwarded to the Regional Traffic Engineer as soon as the appropriate action required by this order has been taken.

7/11/2019 APPROVED BY E/ULD&/)M&A Regional Traffic Engineer
(DATE) (SIGNATUR ] (TITLE)
DESCRIPTION:

Order establishes a 45 MPH speed limit for the above described sectlon of Pendleton Street Extension.

COUNTY: Cortland LOCALITY: Town of Cortlandville
OTHER RELATED ACTIONS X NONE il

(Identify)

ACTION REQUIRED BY THE ABOVE ORDER WAS TAKEN ON:

(DATE) (SIGNATURE) (TITLE)

TE 3e (06/2015) -2




STATE. OF NEW YORK - DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
TRAFFIC OPERATIONS BUREAU

TROOP: ©

SECTION: 1171:06 SUBDIVISION: (3 , PARAGRAPH: (1)
OF THE DEPARTMENT'S REGULATIONJS K. ADDED [l AMENDED to read asifollows: [ REPEALED

gndlefon Sest EXensiol

0813

The above ordér shall be published

: d’\ Regional Traffic: Engineer

. 1111/2019 APPROVED BY,_{"~
' (TITLE)

(DATE)

I hereby certify that the aboveis an: ongmal of an-order of the Department of Transportation adopted pursuant to. the authority coritained In
Section:1620, 1621, 1622,.and 1628, and in accordance with the; provnsnons of Séctlons 1111,-1112; 1113, 1680 and 1681, of theState Vehicle

and Traffic Law.

Dated: Albany, New York:

9/10/2019 - ': W/é Seweegy

DIRECTOR TRAFFIC OPERATIONY/BUREAU

et s

RECEIVE D

SEP 12 2019

ADMINIZTRA TVE RULES
DEPARTMENT OF %TATI::

B ST

STATE OF NEW YORK
DEPARTMENT OF aTa\R
FILED

SEP 122019

with the
Division of Administrative Rules

TE:3e (06/2015) S IS




i |. RECEIVED SEP 3¢ 2019

-

TOWN OF CORTLANDVILLE =
3577 TERRACE ROAD
CORTLAND, NEW YORK 13045-3552

AQUIFER PROTECTION DISTRICT SPECIAL PERMIT

APPLICANT Fee Paid

Name McLean Solar | LLC, attn: Elie Sdﬁ Phone (914) 420-5803
Addiess 55 5th Avenue, Floor 13 New York, NY 10003

PROPERTY OWNER

Name Farm East LLC | Phone | 315-409-9199

If applicant is a Corporation, list name, address, phone and fax numbers of all corporate
officers and directors on reverse side.

Addvess 890 McLean Road Cortland, NY 13045

PROPERTY INFORMATION

415 McLean Road Cortland, New York 13045

Location of property _
Tax Map No. of Parcel 95.00-01-33.]

PROPERTY ACQUIRED ON, OR PENDING DATE OF AQUISTION 2
IS PROPERTY IN FLOOD PLAIN? YES v NO

AQUIFER PROTECTION AREA Area 2: Principle Aquifer

ZONING DISTRICT _Residential

Information to be provided as per Article and Section 178-47 of the Town of Cortlandville
Zoning Law.

DATE OF APPLICATION %/'¥/19 TP et
Signature of Applicant
Zoning Officer
Supervisor

PERMIT GRANTED

PERMIT DENIED




TOWN OF CORTLANDVILLE 3577 TERRACE ROAD
CORTLAND, NEW YORK 13045-3552

APPLICATION FOR CONDITIONAL PERMIT

APPLICANT

Name: Mclean Solar 1 LLC Fee Paid:
Attn:Elie Schecter

Address: 55 5" Avenue, Floor 13 Phone: (914) 420-5803
New York, New York 10003

PROPERTY OWNER

Name: Farm East LLC Fee Paid:

Address: 890 McLean Road Phone: 315-409-9199 (Andy Leonello)
Cortland, NY 13045

PROPERTY INFORMATION

Location of property: 415 McLean Road Cortland, New York 13045

Tax Map No. of Parcel: 95.00-01-33.1

PROPERTY ACQUIRED ON, OR PENDING DATE OF AQUISTION: Lease
IS PROPERTY IN FLOOD PLAIN: YES X NO

ZONING DISTRICT: Industrial

PROJECT DESCRPITION: Ground mounted, large scale solar energy system.

Information to be included will be drawn from a check list in Article XIII, Section 178-71 of
the Cortlandville Zoning Law. A sketch plan conference may be deemed necessary by the
Planning Board.

DATE OF APPLICATION: 9/12/2019 for S e
Signature of Applicant

Zoning Officer

Planning Board Chairperson

PERMIT GRANTED

PERMIT DENIED




GENERAL MUNICIPAL LAW

Zoning Referral Form

Conditional Permits, Special Permits, Site Plan Reviews & Variances

Director GML No._95.00 -01-33 .1
CORTLAND COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT (Tax Map Number)
37 Church St.

Cortland, NY 13045-2838 .

Telephone: (607) 753-5043 Date: _ 2/13/2019 9231019

Fax: (607) 753-5150

Submitting Officer: Bruce Weber, Planning & Zoning Officer

Municipality: Town of Cortlandville

Mailing Address: 3577 Terrace Road, Cortland. NY 13045

Phone Number: . (607) 756-7052 ; . Fax Number: (807) 758-7922

Type of Referral

The applicant request the following:

Variance: Bulk ~ Article Section
Use — Atrticle Section
Special Permit: Article __ Section
Conditional Permit; Article "V Section 1787377 _
Site Plan Review: Article Section

To permit a ground mounted large-scale solar energy system.

Reason(s) for request:

Isthe above actionaType1 _____  Type2. , or@aeﬁon under the State
Environmental Quality Review Act? Attach required environmental assessment forms for Type [ and

unlisted actions.
The following information is required for your applica_tion to be complete:

iti Solar 1 LLC, Attn: Elie Schecter
1. Name of petitioner: McLean Solar

o t, LLC.
Owners name (if different):  Fam East

A portion of the property is being leased

Date of acquisition:

File Name: pinfwpdatafforms/Zoning Referral Form.05/03/05
[Conditional Permits.Special Permits.Site Plan Reviews.Variances]




415 McLean Road, Cortland
Address:

State: New York Zip: 13045

¢

Phone Number;  (914) 420-5803 (Pefitioner) Fax Number:

2. A Site Plan Map showing:

a. Scale (1 inch equals 20 feet if site is less than 1 acre or an agreed upon scale for a site

larger than 1 acre)
North Arrow ,
Physical Characteristics of Site, existing and proposed (Topography, Water and Vegetation)
Layout Plan Showing buildings, parking and available utilities
Surface and Subsurface Drainage Plan, incorporated with Layout Plan
Location of County or State facility pursuant to Section 239 1, m and n of the
General Municipal Law
Location Map at 1"=1000’ scale
h. Area Map at 1"=200’ or an agreed upon scale
(1) zoning classification of subject and adjoining properties
(2) surrounding land use within 500 feet of subject property
3 surrounding zoning classifications

"opoo

@

3. A certified Tax Map from the Cortland County Office of Real Property and Assessment showmg the
property lines of the applicant's praperty.

4. Availability of public utilities and services:

Water — " District ___; Sewer —~ __ Distict — -
Fire Protection __"®5 __ District 8- Cortiandville - Refuse Collection __4
Special services required; ___ VA

5. Does Site Plan conform to municipal master plan? Yes If not why?

8. Does Site Plan conform to county land use plan? ves If not why?

7. School District: Dryden

8. Projected energy consumption: None Type:

Zero (0)

9. Traffic generation (expected vehicle departures and arrivals per 24 hour period) :

NOTE: All maps require the name and address of the N.Y.S. licensed engineer or land surveyor
responsible for preparing the seal and map.

Signature and Title of Subfitti g{fﬁcia!
(REVISED: 8/01)

File Name: pinfwpdata/forms/Zoning Referral Form.05/03/05
[Conditlonal Permits, Special Permits.Site Plan Reviews Variances]




KEYSTONE
ASSOCIATES

ARCHITECTS | ENGINEERS | SURVEYORS

Kenneth D. Ellsworth, P.E

Managing Member

Paul L. Bedford. AIA
drchitect

Rodney L. Carey, L.S
Land Surveyor

Kordian W. Wichtowski, R A
Architect

Main Office
58 Exchange Street
Binghamton. New York 13901
Phone: 607 722.1100
Fax: 607.722 2515

Branch Office
165 South Main Street, Suite 6
Cortland, New York 13045
Phone: 607 753.80135

E-mail: infor@keyscomp.com
www keyscomp.com

September 13, 2019

Ms. Katherine S. Wickwire, Chair

Town of Cortlandville Planning Board

The Raymond G. Thorpe Municipal Building
3577 Terrace Road

Cortland, New York 13045

RE: Mclean Solar I, LLC
McLean Road
Cortland, New York

Dear Ms. Wickwire:

As requested by the Cortland County Planning Board, we offer this letter as
additional information regarding the above captioned project.

The project is proposed to be a +/- 12.00 acres community solar project with +/-
0.59 acres of disturbance. The project will contain 6,864 each Hanwha 365 watt
modules, 80 each Tabuchi 25 kW 3 phase inverters and preliminary estimates
indicate that this site will produce +/- 3,507,504 kWh of electricity annually. The (80
each) Inverters will be connected to circuit breakers in (10 each) electrical
panelboards, which will then be routed to (2 each) Pad-mounted Electrical
Switchgear and Transformers, before interconnecting to the National Grid
distribution system (Equipment information is attached). There will be up to 2,000
linear feet of electrical cable in conduit buried to sufficient depths as required by the
National Electric Code. The electricity generated by this project will be fed into the
National Grid Distribution System as a Community Distributed Generation (CDG)
project. Local residents, businesses, and municipalities in the Greater Cortland area
who are National Grid ratepayers will have the option of subscribing to purchase a
portion of the energy from this project to offset their electric usage, at a discount to
the rates that they would otherwise purchase their electricity from National Grid.

The connection point for this project is on McLean Road, please refer to the site
plans for additional information. The details for the solar panels are shown on
Drawing C200 including the panel height (8’) and the posts to support the panels.
All post supports be driven or augered for this project.

A concern was raised regarding the “glare” from the solar panels impacting the
surrounding properties. We have attached literature regarding the topic of glare and
glint as it relates to solar panels. While this literature is focused on the impacts of
solar systems near an Airport, the same conclusions can be made regarding impacts
to surrounding properties. Please note that “light absorption, rather than reflection,
is central to the function of solar PV panels”. The proposed panels for this project
are PV panels, therefore their intended function is to absorb light. Further, “modern
PV panels reflect as little as two percent of incoming sunlight, about the same as
water and less than soil or even wood shingles”. While there are homes located
both north and south of the proposed project, these homes will not be affected as
the panels for this project are rotating panels which face east-west. To the east of
the project is wooded and therefore will not be impacted. To the west of the project
is one (1) home. As stated in the attached literature, as little as two percent of the
incoming sunlight is anticipated to be reflected from the panels. Additionally,
landscaping is proposed to be installed along both the west and north sides of the



project, this will further reduce any potential impact to the home. Therefore, it is
our opinion that there are no concerns with glare impacting adjacent properties.

Our office has contacted the Cortland County Highway Department regarding using
the existing driveway entrance and we were notified that the only requirement will
be that prior to the start of construction the contractor will need to submit for a
County Permit 136. A note has been added to the project plans indicating that no
work shall be started within the County right-of-way until an approved permit is
received.

An Erosion and Sedimentation Control plan was prepared for the project which
addresses potential stormwater impacts from the project and demonstrates
mitigation measures to prevent excess erosion. Please note that the current
property is crop row with exposed soils (refer to Drawing C105) and the final cover
for the solar project will be a well maintained grass area. The improved cover from
exposed earth to grass will significantly reduce the erosion runoff from the project
site. Maintenance requirements are included on the Erosion and Sedimentation Plan
for the project.

As discussed during the January 2019 Planning Board meeting, this project is located
within an area identified as prime farmland. This matter was reviewed, and the
Planning Board did not have any objections to the project’s location.

Please find attached a copy of the decommissioning plan for the project.

Please contact our office if you have any questions or comments.

Respectfully,

Keystone Associates
Architects, Engineers and Surveyors, LLC

—
Paul T. Woodward
Senior Designer

Enclosures

PTW:

P:\Projects\2018\285002850_24418\2850_24418 | Mclean Solar NCorrespondence\Repnrt\285024418_t_Mclean | Project
Narrative_190911.docx

2850.24418.1 2 09/13/19




AN LVHILIT FHVIO
V XIAN3ddV



e 8
L)

s'::. MEISTER June 2014

CONSULTANTS GROUP

Solar and Glare

A common misconception about solar photovoltaic (PV) panels is that they inherently cause or create
“too much” glare, posing a nuisance to neighbors and a safety risk for pilots. While in certain situations
the glass surfaces of solar PV systems can produce glint (a momentary flash of bright light) and glare (a
reflection of bright light for a longer duration), light absorption, rather than reflection, is central to the
function of a solar PV panel - to absorb solar radiation and convert it to electricity. Solar PV panels are
constructed of dark-colored (usually blue or black) materials and are covered with anti-reflective
coatings. Modern PV panels reflect as little as two percent of incoming sunlight, about the same as water
and less than soil or even wood shingles (SEIA/Sandia 2013). Some of the concern and misconception is
likely due to the confusion between solar PV systems and concentrated solar power (CSP) systems. CSP
systems typically use an array of mirrors to reflect sunlight to heat water or other fluids to create steam
that turns an electric generator. These typically involve large ground-mounted reflectors, usually in
remote desert locations, and are not installed in residential or commercial areas or near airports.

Solar PV system on the left compared to a parabolic trough CSP

system onthe right. Photo Copyright DOE/NRELJORNL

Powered by

SunShot

U.S. Department of Energy

fad




.8

<o MEISTER June 2014

Solar and Glare

As of June 2013, there were over 30 solar projects in operation at airports in 15 different states (Barrett
2013). Solar installations have been successfully located at or near US international airports in Boston,
New York, San Francisco, and Denver, among others. Yet concerns over glint (a quick reflection) and
glare (a longer reflection) often arise when a PV system is proposed on or near an airport. Pilots are
familiar with both glintand glare as reflection is a common phenomenon, especially off of bodies of water
or in the form of glare from the sun itself. However, issues can arise if the solar PV system were to cast
glare into an air traffic control tower.*

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has been actively reviewing the impact of glare from solar
panels to streamline an evaluation process that ensures safety while creating more opportunity for solar
installations on or near airports. The FAA filed notice of its Interim Policy for review of solar energy
systems on federally obligated airports (i.e. airports which receive federal funding) in October of 2013.2
This policy requires that a sponsor of a federally obligated airport must request FAA review and approval
to install solar on its “airport layout plan.” Federally-obligated airports must also notify the FAA of its
intent to construct any solar installation by filing FAA form 7460-1. The interim FAA policy also requires
the use of the Solar Glare Hazard Analysis Tool for on-airport solar development.

In order to understand and model glare in accordance with FAA standards, Sandia National Laboratories
developed the Solar Glare Hazard Analysis Tool (SGHAT). Standardized safety metrics define what glare
intensity will cause unwanted visual impacts to Air Traffic Control towers and airplane pilots. SGHAT can
be used to evaluate the potential of a particular PV array to produce glare intensity, predicting when and
where glare will occur from a prescribed PV array at user-defined observation points (i.e. from the Air
Traffic Control Tower or from a series of points along an aircraft landing route) and be combined with
Google maps foran easy user interface. In instances where glare may be a concern, the tool can prescribe
minor adjustments to the tilt, direction, and location of the panels to alleviate any issues. SGHAT will
predict annual energy production for the various adjusted positions (SEIA/Sandia PPT).

Local governments may wish to include airport guidance within their local zoning ordinances that
address solar PV. The North Carolina Solar Center Template Solar Energy Development Ordinance for
North Carolina® includes a section on airports and recommends aviation notification steps for both on-
airport solar projects and installations within 5 nautical miles of an airport. In addition to amendments to
local zoning codes, local governments have the opportunity to conduct outreach to airports,

! http://www.unionleader.com/article/20120830/NEWS02/708309966/0/newhampshire
2 heep://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2013-10-23/pdf/2013-24729.pdf
? http:/incsc.ncsu.edu/wp-content/uploads/Template-Solar-Ordinance V1.0 12-18-13.pdf

Powered by

SunShot

U.S. Departmant of Energy




3

@f‘. M { I STER June 2014

Solar and Glare

organizations and local stakeholders about methods for predicting and managing glare impacts from
solar panels near airports or other locations. Such outreach furthers the safety goals of the FAA and the
solar energy development goals of municipalities and communities. Spreading awareness of the safety
of PV systems along with FAA guidance and glare measurement tools will help foster informed
communities and enable the deployment of safe and productive solar PV projects in locations where glint
and glare may be of concern.

Sandia Solar Glare Mapping Tools: https://share.sandia.gov/phlux

Barrett, S., June 2013, Glare Factor: Solar Installations And Airports, Solar Industry, Volume 6, Number 5.
http://www.solarindustrymag.com/issues/S11306/FEAT o2 Glare Factor.html.

Federal Register 2013, etc.: http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2013-10-23/pdf/2013-24729.pdf

SEIA/Sandia Webinar on Solar PV and Glare:
http://www.seia.org/sites/default/files/resources/Final%20FAAY%20Webinar¥%20Slides¥%20Auqust¥%202

013.pdf

Authors: Caroline Palmer and Chad Laurent, Meister Consultants Group, Inc.

Meister Consultants Group, Inc. | 98 N. Washington St., Suite 302, Boston, MA 02114 | www.mc-
group.com

This fact sheet, produced by Meister Consultants Group, Inc., is supported by the following team of organizations: ICLEI-USA;
International City/County Management Association (ICMA); Solar Electric Power Association (SEPA); Interstate Renewable
Energy Council, Inc. (IREC); North Carolina Solar Center (NCSC); The Solar Foundation (TSF); American Planning Association
(APA); and National Association of Regional Councils (NARC).

This material is based upon work supported by the U.S. Department of Energy under Award Number DE-EE0003525.This
fact sheet was prepared as an account of work sponsored by an agency of the United States Government. Neither the United
States Government nor any agency thereof, nor any of their employees, makes any warranty, express or implied, or assumes
any legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of any information, apparatus, product, or
process disclosed, or represents that its use would not infringe on privately owned rights. Reference herein to any specific
commercial product, process, or service by trade name, trademark, manufacturer, or otherwise does not necessarily constitute
or imply its endorsement, recommendation, or favoring by the United States Government or any agency thereof. The views
and opinions of authors expressed herein do not necessarily state or reflect those of the United States Government or any
agency thereof.

Powered by

SunShot

U.S Departrment of Energy




NV1d OSNINOISSINWOD3d
9 XIdN3ddV



Cortlandville Solar Projects - Decommissioning Plan

At the completion of the expected life of the Solar Energy Facility, the entire system shall be removed by
the applicant or the subsequent owner. The Applicant’ lease agreement with the landowner has a
primary term of 20 years, followed by options for (3) five-year extensions. The lease agreement
stipulates that at the conclusion of either the primary or renewal term, the premises shall be restored to
its original condition, including the removal of the system mounting pads or other support structures
and left in neat and clean order. The agreement allows for a removal term of up to 180 days for the
Tenant to remove the system. The agreement also stipulates that if the tenant fails to remove the
system prior to the expiration of the removal term, then the landlord shall have the right to remove the
system to a public warehouse and restore the premises to its original condition at Tenant’s reasonable
cost.

The decommissioning process will be completed as follows:

e Allitems with resale value, including transformers and solar panels, will be removed from the
site and sold for fair market value.

e All aluminum, steel, and other metal parts without resale value will be sold for scrap value

¢ Allitems with no resale or scrap value will be removed from the site, and recycled where
applicable, otherwise disposed of in accordance with all local laws and regulations.

Note: It is widely believed that the resale value and scrap value alone will exceed the costs of system
removal. Solar panels themselves, which carry a limited power warranty of >80% of their rated capacity
after 25 years, may cover most, if not all, of the costs of decommissioning.

Based on NYSERDA’s estimate of decommissioning costs for a 2 MW project {enclosed), each 2 MW-AC
project in the Cortlandville Portfolio would carry the following budgetary costs for decommissioning:

tem | EstimatedCost
Remove Rack Wiring S 2,459.00
Remove Panels S 2,450.00
Dismantle Racks S 12,350.00
Remove Electrical Equipment S 1,850.00
Breakup and Remove Concrete Pads S 1,500.00
Remove Racks S 7,800.00
Remove Cable $ - 6,500.00
Remove Ground Screws and Power Poles | S 13,850.00
Remove Fence S 4,950.00
Grading S 4,000.00
Seed Disturbed Area S 250.00
Truck to Recycling Center S 2,250.00
Total |s  60,209.00

Total after 20 years (2.5% inflationrate) | $ = 98,659.46




FACT SHEET

DECOMMISSIONING SOLAR
PANEL SYSTEMS

NEW YORK

STATE OF
OPPORTUNITY.

NY-Sun

This fact sheet provides information to
local governments and landowners on
decommissioning of large-scale solar

panel systems.

As local governments develop solar regulations and
landowners negotiate land leases, it is important to
understand the options for decommissioning solar panel
systems and restoring project sites to their original status.

From a land use perspective, solar panel systems are
generally considered large-scale when they constitute

the primary use of the land, and can range from less than
one acre in urban areas to 10 or more acres in rural areas.
Depending on where they are sited, large-scale solar
projects can have habitat, farmland, and aesthetic impacts.
As a result, large-scale systems must often adhere to
specific development standards.

Abandonment and decommissioning defined

Abandonment occurs when a solar array is inactive for a
certain period of time.

- Abandonment requires that solar panel systems be
removed after a specified period of time if they are no
longer in use. Local governments establish timeframes for
the removal of abandoned systems based on aesthetics,
system size and complexity, and location. For example,
the Town of Geneva, NY, defines a solar panel system
as abandoned if construction has not started within 18
months of site plan approval, or if the completed system
has been nonoperational for more than one year!

+ Once a local government determines a solar panel
system is abandoned, and has provided thirty (30) days
prior written notice to the owner it can take enforcement
actions, including imposing civil penalties/fines, and
removing the system and imposing a lien on the property
to recover associated costs.

Decommissioning is the process for removing an abandoned
solar panel system and remediating the land.

- When describing requirements for decommissioning
sites, it is possible to specifically require the removal
of infrastructure, disposal of any components, and the
stabilization and re-vegetation of the site.

" Town of Geneva, N.Y. CODE § 130-4(D)(5) (2016):

What is a decommissioning plan?

Local governments may require to have a plan in place to
remove solar panel systems at the end of their lifecycle,
which is typically 20-40 years. A decommissioning plan
outlines required steps to remove the system, dispose of or
recycle its components, and restore the land to its original
state. Plans may also include an estimated cost schedule and
a form of decommissioning security (see Table 1).

What is the estimated cost of decommissioning?

Given the potential costs of decommissioning and land
reclamation, it is reasonable for landowners and local
governments to proactively consider system removal
guarantees. A licensed professional engineer, preferably
with solar development experience, can estimate
decommissioning costs, which vary across the United States.
Decommissioning costs will vary depending upon project
size, location, and complexity. Table 1 provides an estimate
of potential decommissioning costs for a ground-mounted
2-MW solar panel system. Figures are based on estimates
from the Massachusetts solar market. Decommissioning
costs for a New York solar installation may differ. Some
materials from solar installations may be recycled, reused, or
even sold resulting in no costs or compensation. Consider
allowing a periodic reevaluation of decommissioning costs
during the project’s lifetime by a licensed professional
engineer, as costs could decrease and the required payment
should be reduced accordingly.

Table 1: Sample list of decommisioning tasks and estimated costs

Tasks Estimated Cost ($)

Remove Rack Wiring $2.459
Remove Panels $2.450
Dismantle Racks $12,350
Remove Electrical Equipment $1.850
Breakupand Remove Concrete Pads or Ballasts $1,500
Remove Racks $1.800
Remove Cable $6,500
Remove Ground Screws and Power Poles $13,850
Remove Fence $4950
Grading $4.000
Seed Disturbed Areas $250
Truckto Recycling Center $2 222%

NEW YORK
STATE OF
OPPORTUNITY.

NYSERDA




How can decommissioning be ensured?

Landowners and local governments can ensure appropriate
decommissioning and reclamation by using financial and
regulatory mechanisms. However, these mechanisms come
with tradeoffs. Including decommissioning costs in the
upfront price of solar projects increases overall project costs,
which could discourage solar development. As a result,

solar developers are sometimes hesitant to provide

or require financial surety for decommissioning costs.

Itis also important to note that many local governments
choose to require a financial mechanism for decommissioning.
Although similar to telecommunications installations, there is
no specific authority to do so as part of a land use approval
for solar projects (see Table 2). Therefore, a local government
should consult their municipal attorney when evaluating
financial mechanisms.

The various financial and regulatory mechanisms to
decommission projects are detailed below.

Table 2: Relevant Provisions of General City, Town, and Village
Laws Relating to Municipal Authority to Require Conditions,
Waivers, and Financial Mechanisms

Site PlanReview General City Law |ann Law |Village
Conditians 27-ad) 214-a(4) [1125-a(4)
Waivers 21-a(5) 214-a(d) |7125-a(5)
Performance bend or other security |27-a (7) 214-a(7) ]17125-a(])
General ity Law |TownLaw |Village Law
Waivers 33 211 7130 (1)
Performance bond or other security |33 (8) 217(9) l7-730 9
Conditions 21-b (4) 214-b(4) [17125h (@)
Waivers 21-b (5) 214-b (5} |7-125-b (5

Source: Referenced citations may be viewed using the NYS Laws of
New York Online

Excerpts from these statutes are also contained within the “Guide to Planning
and Zoning Laws of New York State,” New York State Division of Local
Governments Services, June 201 www.dos.ny.gov/ig/publications/Guide_
to_planning_and_zoning_laws.pdf

Financial mechanisms

Decommissioning Provisions in Land-Lease Agreements.
Il a decomimission plan is required, public or private
landowners should make sure a decommissioning clause

is included in the land-lease agreement. This clause may
depend on the decommissioning preferences of the
tandowner and the developer. The clause could require
the solar project developer to remove all equipment and
restore the land to its original condition after the end of the
contract, or after generation drops below a certain level,

or it could offer an option for the landowner to buy-out and
continue to use the equipment to generate electricity. The
decommissioning clause should also address abandonment
and the possible failure of the developer to comply with

the decommissioning plan. This clause could allow for the
landowner to pay for removal of the system or pass the costs
to the developer.

Decommissioning Trusts or Escrow Accounts. Solar
developers can establish a cash account or trust fund

for decommissioning purposes. The developer makes a
series of payments during the project’s lifecycle until the
fund reaches the estimated cost of decommissioning.
Landowners or third-party financial institutions can manage
these accounts. Terms on individual payment amounts and
frequency can be included in the land lease.

Removal or Surety Bonds. Solar developers can provide
decommissioning security in the form of bonds to guarantee
the availability of funds for system removal. The bond
amount equals the decommissioning and reclamation costs
for the entire system. The bond must remain valid until the
decommissioning obligations have been met. Therefore, the
bond must be renewed or replaced if necessary to account
for any changes in the total decommissioning cost.

Letters of credit. A letter of credit is a document issued by
a bank that assures landowners a payment up to a specified
amount, given that certain conditions have been met. In the
case that the project developer fails to remove the system,
the landowner can claim the specified amount to cover
decommissioning costs. A letter of credit should clearly
state the conditions for payment, supporting documentation
landowners must provide, and an expiration date. The
document must be continuously renewed or replaced to
remain effective until obligations under the decommissioning
plan are met?

Nonfinancial mechanisms

Local governments can establish nonfinancial decommissioning
requirements as part of the law. Provisions for decommissioning
large-scale solar panel systems are similar to those regulating
telecommunications installations, such as cellular towers and
antennas. The following options may be used separately

or together.

« Abandonment and Removal Clause. Local governments
can include in their zoning code an abandonment and
removal clause for solar panel systems. These cases
effectively become zoning enforcement matters where
project owners can be mandated to remove the equipment
via the imposition of civil penalties and fines, and/or by
imposing a lien on the property to recover the associated
costs. To be most effective, these regulations should be
very specific about the length of time that constitutes
abandonment. Establishing a timeframe for the removal of
a solar panel system can be based on system aesthetics,
size, location, and complexity. Local governments should
include a high degree of specificity when defining “removal
to avoid ambiguity and potential conflicts.

n

2 See a letter of credit submitted to the Vermont Public Service Board by NextSun Energy, LLC.
http://psb.vermont.gov/sites/psb/files/docketsandprojects/Solat/Exhibit%20Petitioner%20JL-7%20(Revised%20326.14).pdf




- Special Permit Application. A local government may also
mandate through its zoning code that a decommissioning
plan be submitted by the solar developer as part of a site
plan or special permit application. Having such a plan in place
allows the local government, in cases of noncompliance, to
place a lien on the property to pay for the costs of removal
and remediation.

+ Temporary Variance/Special Permit Process. As an
alternative to requiring a financial mechanism as part of a land
use approval, local governments could employ a temporary
variance/special permit process (effectively a re- licensing
system). Under this system, the locality would issue a special
permit or variance for the facility for a term of 20 or more
years; once expired (and if not renewed), the site would no
longer be in compliance with local zoning, and the locality
could then use their regular zoning enforcement authority to
require the removal of the facility.

What are some examples of abandonment and
decommissioning provisions?

The New York State Model Solar Energy Law provides model
language for abandonment and decommissioning provisions:

www.cuny.edu/about/resources/sustainability/reports/NYS_
Model_Solar_Energy._LawToolkit_FINAL _final.pdf

The following provide further examples that are intended to be
illustrative and do not confer an endorsement of content:

- Town of Geneva, N.Y,, § 130-4(D):
ecode360.com/28823382

» Town of Olean, N.Y,, § 10.25.5:
www.cityofolean.org/council/minutes/ccmin2015-04-14.pdf

Is there a checklist for decommissioning plans?
The following items are often addressed in decommissioning
plans requirements:?

- Defined conditions upon which decommissioning will be
initiated (i.e., end of land Iease, no operation for 12 months,
prior written notice to facility owner, etc.).

- Removal of all nonutility owned equipment, conduit,
structures, fencing, roads, and foundations.

- Restoration of property to condition prior to solar development.
» The timeframe for completion of decommissioning activities.

» Description of any agreement (e.g., lease) with landowner
regarding decommissioning.

+ The party responsible for decommissioning.
« Plans for updating the decommissioning plan.

« Before final electrical inspection, provide evidence that
the decommissioning plan was recorded with the Register
of Deeds.

f Addltlonal Resnurces

: 'Template Solar EnergyDevelopmentOrdlnance for o
- North Carolina (see Appendleat pg. 21 for Sample . .

DeCommlSsro ning Plan). nccleantech ncsu, edu/wp content/
uploads/Template-Solar—Ordlnance V1.0 12-18-13 pdf ‘

‘ kLand Use Planmng for Solar training. ny-sun ny.gov/.

lmages/PDFs/l.and Use Plannmg_for Solar Energypdf

- Zonmg Gurde for Solar trammg ny-sun nygov/lmagesl
,PDFs/Zonmg or Solar Energy Resource Guide, pdf

- Information on Flrst Qolars recyclmg program foraliof

their modules: www.i firstsolar. com/eanechnologles— '

ayand Capabllltles/Recyclmg-Serwces

PV Cycle Europes PV recyclmg program ;

www. pvcycle org/

'Solar Energy lndustrles Assocratlon (SElA)

information on solar panel recyclmg
www.seia. org/pohcy/envrronment/pv-recyclmg

Slllcon Valley Toxrcs Coalltlon svtc org/

Slllcon Valley Tox1c Coalltlon Solar Scorecard .
WWW. solarscorecarcl com/2015/2015-SVTC-Solar- :

' Scorecard pdf

End of life. PV:then what7 Recyclmg solar panels
WWW, renewyableenergyfccus com/vlew/3005/end -of-
, 1life-pv,-fchen-whatéteoytlihg¥solarfpv-panels/ S

 North Carolina Solar Center, NC Sustainable Energy Center. December 2013. Template Solar Energy Development Ordinance for
North Carolina. https://nccleantech.ncsu.edu/wp-content/uploads/Template-Solar-Ordinance_V1.0_12-18-13.pdf

e:t SUN-GEN-decom-fs-1-vi 9/16

NEW YORK
STATE OF
OPPORTUNITY.

NYSERDA




LNIWdINO3
O XIAN3IddV



ELEETH!G

Three-phase 25kW Solar Inverter
M25-6

6 MPPT Inverter

Designed for Distributed Solar

» Improved system performance

» 98.7% Maximum Efficiency

» 10-year Warranty (20-year option)

» Lower BOS costs - No need for combiner boxes
» Increased system reliability

» Optional Rapid Shutdown & Monitoring Systems

www .tabuchiamerica.com

Intertek




TABULDHI
ELECTRIC

M25-6: Three-phase 25kW Solar Inverter model Number :TP-250P6-Us)

input (DC)

Nominal input power per string
Max. input voltage

Operation voltage range

MPPT voltage range

Nominal input voltage range

Min. input voltage / starting voltage
Operating input current per string
Max. short circuit current per string
Number of MPP tracker inputs

Efficiency

Max. Efficiency
CEC Efficiency

Protection

Islanding Operation Detection: Active
Islanding Operation Detection: Passive

Output (AC: Grid connected)

Rated output power*

Grid connection type

Rated AC voltage

Rated power frequency

Rated output current

Power factor at rated output power

4300 W (5200 W / output limited)
1000V

200-1000 V

200V to 800 V

500 V to 800 V

200 V/200 V

10A

20 A

6

98.7%
97.5%

Frequency shifting method
Frequency change detective method

25000 W

Three-phase, 4-wire type
480 V(277 V WYE)

60 Hz

30A

=099

*When the Power factor is 100% during inverter operation.

General Data

Dimensions WxH x D
Weight
Operating temperature range

internal consumption {night)
Cooling concept

Enclosure Rating
Controller/Interface
Certification

Topology

950 x 640.6 x 300 mm (37.4 x 25.2 x 11.8 in)
69 kg (152.1 1b)

—20°C to +60°C (—4°F to +140°F)

Rated output untit +40°C (-+104°F)

<B8W

Cooling Fan

NEMA3

Master Box" (Required)/RS485

ETL(UL 1741/1699B, CSA C22.2 No. 107.1-01,
IEEE 15473, CEC) , FCC class A

Transformer-less

* Master Box is required to use three-phase 25 kW inverter.

§ Block Diagram

Wire Box

Inverter Unit

DCConvnrtt

es
‘Outputﬁmned I Ee ) m—

Remote Control T
{ONOFF) .
Operatis
Externat Communication < veee %::;g
(RS 485)
Contact Tas—
(Notiaty Ouert, and‘»}y Closend)

H OC Corverters |
{ Output Emited at 5200W |
k With MPPT control

Detector Circuit

|

‘oid
Output

I Dimensions

Urit 2 mem i)

300 (11.8)

49,8 2.0)

270 (10.6)

6-M10 (6-7/16)
For hole

i

308121

640.6 (25.2)

850 {33.5) 34.6(1.4)

950 (37.4) [swi

2:034.5(1.4) -043.7 (1.7

o/.ooood‘:

Some spegifications or aspects of appearance may be changed without notice to improve the product.

TABUTCHI
ELECTRIC

TABUCHI ELECTRIC COMPANY OF AMERICA, LIMITED

SAN JOSE OFFICE

5225 Hellyer Avenue, Suite 150 San

Jose, CA 95138 USA
PHONE: (408) 224-9300

EMAIL: sales@tabuchiamerica.com

@ @ Artdeyy Bt Sestdion

CAUFORNIA SOLAR ENERGY

RG)
;,,,\\:MWN;wr,.,‘..my,.,‘s.k.., INDUSTRIES ASSOCIATION
SNIINRS
SEIA ==
Aj_b. e
' Member

www tabuchiamerica.com

| TPD-T250P6-US.2017.06.20.TA




powered by

Q.ANTUM SOLAR MODULE

The new high-performance module © " is the ideal solu-
tion for commercial and utility appllcatlons thanks to a combination of
its innovative cell technology . . /i and cutting edge cell intercon-
nection. This 1500V IEC/UL solar module with its 6 bushar cell design
ensures superior yields with up to 375 Wp while having a very low LCOE.

L ELECTRIDITY GEMER
=g Higher yield per surface area, lower BOS costs, higher power
classes, and an efficiency rate of up to 19.1 %.

IMMOVATIVE SLL-WEATHER TECHNOLOGY
Optimal yields, whatever the weather with excellent low-light
and temperature behavior.

ENODURING HIGH PERFORMANCE
Long-term yield security with Anti LID Technology,
Anti PID Technology!, Hot-Spot Protect and Traceable Quality Tra.Q™.

EXTREME WEATHER RATING
et High-tech aluminum alloy frame, certified for high snow
4 (5400 Pa) and wind loads (2400 Pa).

& RELIABLE IMVESTMENT
~ Inclusive 12-year product warranty and 25-year
linear performance warranty?.

THE IDEAL SOLUTION FOR:

Rooftop arrays on
'ﬁ%\" commercial/industrial

buildings

Ground-mounted
solar power plants

Engineered in Germany

£3CELLS §

| TOPBRAND PV 4 v e Tecasont
)

% % EUROPE " / aasrsmr PROTECT
\.2018 /
%“g g i

 TASEABLE QUALITY
aman

fk‘m LD TECHAOL03Y
ALT)

CaCeEls

Best polyciystailine
solar module 2014
QPRO-G2 235
174 msodules tested

! APT test conditions according to
{EC/TS 62804-1:2015,
method B (-1500V, 168Hh)

2 See data sheet on rear for further
information.

) CELLS




MECHANICAL SPECIFICATION

Format 79.3in x 39.4in x 1.38in (including frame)
(2015 mm x 1000mm x 35mm)
Weight 51.81bs (23.5kg)
Front Cover 0.13in (3.2 mm) thermally pre-stressed glass with anti-reflection technology
Back Cover Composite film
Frame Anodized aluminum
Celt 6 x 24 multicrystalline Q.ANTUM solar half-cells

2.76-3.35in x 1.97-2.76 in x 0.51-0.83 in {70-85 mm x 50-70 mm x
13-21 mm), Protection class P67, with bypass diodes

4mm2 Solar cable; (+) 253.1in (1350mm), (=) 253.1in (1350 mm}
Multi-Contact MC4-EV02, JMTHY PV-JM601A, IP68 or Renhe 05-8, P67

Junction hox

Cahle

Connector

'ELECTRICAL CHARACTERISTICS

7937 (2015 ram)

515" (1308 eom)
ES.7 (400 =) A“—q—’-‘ 0397353 mrn

g
4xGnending bales, 016 (45 mm}

& x Moanting seta systacs Teaciar (DETAIL )
X
@50 =y

oo

4% Maqatiog slets (DETHIL A
\

8x Ouainags hes
LITRYE Ty
°¢, Frare—
@ 74-
549y
2.4
1009 )
24
g,
%
B Oraieags hews
012 < 024" (3 < 6 ) —

08T (18 mm)

L3825 mmy PETRLA

RN &= SR

ceTniLe

S =

037 a0
=

375

POWER CLASS 360 365 370
MINIMUM PERFORMANCE AT STANDARD TEST CONDITIONS, STC' (POWER TOLERANCE +5W / -0W)
Pawer at MPP! Pyer w1 360 365 370 375
Short Circuit Current’ Ise [A] 9.87 9.92 9.96 10.01
5 Open Circuit Voitage' Voo v] 46.80 47.03 47.26 47.49
-§ Current at MPP [ 1. [A] 9.35 9.41 9.47 9.54
Voltage at MPP Virr vl 38.62 38.79 39.05 39.32
Efficiency’ n [%] >18.1 218.3 >18.6 >18.8
MINIMUM PERFORMANCE AT NORMAL OPERATING CONDITIONS, NMOT?
Power at MPP Puse W] 267.7 271.4 275.2 2789
g  Short Gircuit Current tee [Al 7.95 7.99 8.03 8.06
é Open Circuit Voitage Vie vl 43,94 44.16 44.38 4459
£ Current at MPP e 7y 7.35 7.40 7.46 7.51
Voltage at MPP Vier V] 36.44 36.68 36.91 37.14
*Measurement toterances Pye £3%,; lsc Voo £5% at STC: 1000W/m?, 25:2°C, AM 1.5G according to 1EC 60904-3 - 2800 W/im2, NMOT, spectrum AM 1.5G
@ CELLS PERFORMANCE WARRANTY PERFORMANCE AT LOW IRRADIANCE

== QUELS
— sty St for [os wamnties”
iy SEdrd tor hved wamanties”

At least 37 % of nominal power during first year.
Thereafter max. 0.54 % degradation per year.
At least 92 % of nominal power up to 10 years.

B8
l
1
“
1
)
I
i
i
4
|
|
|
i

8

At least 84 % of nominal power up to 25 years.

RELATIVE EFFICIENCY

All data within measurement tolerances.
Full warranties in accordance with the warranty
terms of the Q CELLS sales organization of your

RELATIVE EFFICIENCY (%]
8

respective country.

GOMPARED TO NOMINAL POWER [%]

° s [ 15 2

“Standhard tarms of gusrastes for the 10 PV campanias
with the highast arodscton capasty i 2014 (a3 at: Sestambar 2014)

=
YEARS

TEMPERATURE COEFFICIENTS
Temperature Coefficient of Ig. [%/K]

Temperature Coefficient of Py Y [%/K1

_PROPERTIES FOR SYSTEM DESIGN

Maximum System Voltage V,, v 1500 (IEC) / 1500 (UL}
Maximum Series Fuse Rating [A DC] 20
Max. Design Load, Push / Pull (UL)? [ibs/ft?] 75 (3600Pa) / 33 (1600 Pa)
Max. Test Load, Push / Pull (UL)? [hs/ft3] 113 (5400Pa) / 50 (2400Pa)

_QUALIFICATIONS AND CERTIFICATES

+0.04
-0.39

Typical module performance

I 1
I I
i i
1 2
200 400 800 800

1000
IRRADIANGE [W/m?}

under low irradiance conditions in

comparison to STC conditions (25°C, 1000W/m?).

Temperature Coefficient of V,, [{]
Normal Operating Module Temperature

Safety Class
Fire Rating

Permitted module temperature
on continuous duty

2 see installation manual

PACKAGING INFORMATION

[%/K1
NMOT [°F1

-0.29
109 £5.4 (43 £3°C)

C (IEC) / TYPE 1 (UL)

~40°F up to +185°F
(—40°C up to +85°C)

UL 1703; CE-compliant;
IEC 61215:2016, IEC 61730:2016 application class A

ce &

Cenfiad
U 1703
[

Number of Medules per Paliet

Number of Pallets per 53" Trailer

Number of Pallets per 40' High Cube Container
Pallet Dimensions (Lx W x H)

29
26
22
81.9in x 45.3in x 46.7in

(2080mm x 1150mm x 1190 mm)

Pallet Weight

16351bs (742kg)

NOTE: Instaltation instructions must be followed. See the installation and operating manual or contact our technical service department for further information on approved instatlation and use

of this product.
Hanwha Q CELLS America Inc.

300 Spectrum Center Drive, Suite 1250, Irvine, CA 92618, USAt TEL +1 949 748 59 96 | 1AL inquiry@us.q-cells.com | Wi www.q-celis.us

| changes © Hanwha Q CELLS Q.PLUS DUO L-G5.2_360-375_2018-06_RevO1_NA

subject to




v- -9 - 3- -a- -3- 4~ | -9- “H- _ _ ‘
D=2 TS G o - T2t
s NVIGALIS WABHOLING Ad
O [N e D BOEYIS Tt
A GHVA I5YE OVOH H)
7 0Ny dfl Savd 3 0H 308 GIHEME (W)
- h*lﬂ
Aovwd (3)
# vd (W)
ERILETE)
pigANL
n-5
= t—3 s
1951 100 HHORY (K
oo .
LT \.5_./ #
/ L
i
o e d amona
i 291
-T2 A=t
s
NOLLYASTS LNOY ¥ySDHOLIMS Ad — G SIS V4 8 YSWE0ISNVEL
o 7 3008 THMD {0}
L / NiE M
- Ty wd (N}
are - 7
] S ) o
o ] (o0
| 5] = [P E— -
| =} i—
T 34 { -
-2t e e s o e et @
(NOTLVAS TS Sva) SI5v9 INGWAINOF NIATIG 31Td
_. " om0
o
S |
L L o
SYWNM \
o i m
oy T
LEE RTINS )
HUHTANE O r\ !
AN avot {4 l\
v- -g- 3- -a- -3- -4- -9- “H- I -1- -- -

- .

7}

=3




5

”‘?’v%?

P

L2 Ener

&

McLean 1 Solar Project

Cortlandville, NY

305 Dela Vina Avenue
Monterey, CA 93940
(855) 428-3000
WWW.IpCs.com

Licensed Contractor
CSLB #1000391 | C-10, B General

CONSTRUCTION
SERVICES

TRUSTED PARTNER




THE GOLD STANDARD IN SOLAR TRACKING
ARRAY TECHNOLOGIES" ADVANTAGES

ARRAY TECHNOLOGIES INC.
THE BEST TRACKER COMPANY IN THE WORLD

* 30 Years of Solar Tracker Design

» 8+ Gigawatts Installed; 10+ Gigawatts Shipped
* Projects In All 50 States and 25 Countries

* 99.996% Field-Tested Uptime

» Easiest Tracker Installation

* Most Bankable, Reliable Trackers

ARRAY DURATRACK® HZ V3
THE MOST ADVANCED TRACKER IN THE WORLD

* 7% Lower LCOE; 31% Lower Lifetime O&M
» Zero Scheduled Maintenance for 25 Years
* Fewest Motors Per MW

* No Wind Stow Necessary

+ No Batteries Required
* Up to 25% Energy Gain Over Fixed Tilt




RPCS: ARRAY'S DG PARTNER & MECHANICAL INSTALLER
FLAWLESS PROJECT ENGINEERING & CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

RPCS IS ARRAY TECHNOLOGIES INC.'S LONG TERM PARTNER
COAST TO COAST INSTALLATION OF THE WORLD’S BEST TRACKER

* 10 years of partnership with hundreds of completed Array tracker projects
* RPCS is Array's trusted partner for all projects under 10 MW AC
* RPCS exclusively installs Array Technologies’ tracker systems

* Our Array focus means predictable Array installations and repeatable success for
our customers

TURNKEY SERVICES

EXPERT KNOWLEDGE TURNKEY CONSTRUCTION

& SUPPORT SERVICES

RPCS knows solar trackers. Your team can RPCS is a fully licensed mechanical and electrical
execute more tracker projects by relying on contractor, performing work across the country
the knowledge and support RPCS offers. Our using company owned equipment and our own
team provides you with site layout optimization, world class construction crews. Our crews are
ancillary engineering, foundation post and tracker expertly skilled in the mechanical installation of

procurement, mechanical installation, and tracker
commissioning. Optimize the full potential of your
solar project’s footprint, from high security sites X , ) )
to projects built 14 feet above the ground. We mstallatpn, tra;ker and module mstqllatlon,
understand the intricacies that make distributed and on-site project management. Enjoy peace
generation and utility projects unique. of mind with RPCS' labor warranty upon
commissioning of your project.

solar trackers, providing full turnkey mechanical
installation services, including foundation post

* Optimized Foundation Design & Layout F dation P : Hati
L ]
» Geotechnical Site Assessment Support oundation Post Instaliation

T -
* Tracker & Foundation Post Procurement * Tracker & M?dule Installation
& Logistics * Complete Wire Management

*» Complete Mechanical Installation * Tracker Commissioning
* Vegetation Maintenance Assistance

315 (whxdx14)




PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS
DURATRACK® HZ V3 UTILITY SYSTEM STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

* High strength octagonal tubing with coating, no welding required.
® Array universal clamps with integral grounding.
STRUCTURAL ® |-beam foundation connections provided (standard):
COMPONENTS s Foundation size range: wbx8.5, W6x12, Wéx16
o Other weight I-beams may be used with Array's approval - longer lead times may apply
¢ Column material is not included in tracker row price.

» UV stabilized, long life dry side bearings.
MECHANICAL * Array gear drive system with double-universal-joint driveline per linked row for added flexibility.

COMPONENTS * Stowing: Passive mechanical system automatically relieves wind pressure or possible
obstruction that could cause damage without requiring power.

* 1.49 kW (2 hp) 230/4 0 VAC, 60 Hz, 3 phase drive motor per system block.
® Array 4X microprocessor controller unit (MCU) included per 4 motorized blocks for independent

DRIVE & system control.
CONTROL * Array site data unit(s) with centralized communication to each 4X MCU included in each system.

ARCHITECTURE * MODBUS over Ethernet supported standard.

® 6-conductor direct burial control wire for connectivity between 4X MCUs and drive motors
provided. (600V rated standard, to 1000V or 2000V rating with cost adder)

CENTRAL ® Garmin GPS 16xTM for precision site-wide time updates.
CONTROLLER * Data available via MODBUS to SCADA system
FEATURES ystem.

* Site specific tracker building blocks available upon request.
* Ground Reaction Force calculations in order to design foundations.

DOCUMENTATION | ° Permit package including PE wet stamped tracker system drawings and structural calculations
excluding foundations.

& SUPPORT ® Install guide and BOM.,
* Unlimited telephone support.
* Array on-site final system commissioning standard.
* 5 year parts only standard warranty; extendable to 10 years at additional cost.
* On site deliveries for the project will begin subject to finalized contracts.
WARRANTY ® Tracker ships from multiple locations.
LOGISTICS * Site/tracker specific component shipping BOM provided at time of shipment.
* Shipping and handling is estimated only, unless otherwise specified in quote notes.
* Estimate assumes IBC design loads specified but not verified by Array Technologies.
® UL 2703 and 3703 compliant (UL Certification).
NOTES * Standard tracker is designed for ISO 9223 C2 corrosion conditions.
ASSUM, PTIONS, * Topography is assumed to conform within tracker row design parameters.
CLARIFICATIONS . Solar $ite is assumed to use the minimal amount of row configurations for the most
optimized layout and cost to construct.
& EXCLUSIONS

* Foundations and foundation design not included.
* Modules are not interchangeable; tracker design may change with module.
* Protected by US Patent NO. 8,459,249 and other Patents Pending.




